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a year, of which the society paid one hundred dollars,
tho Becond Baptist Chureh of Wilmington one
hundred dollues amd tiearge Tarria one Lundred dol-
lars,  Jonathan Srites and George Purris purchased
A lot on the south side of the pullic square, and in
1850 started a subscription to bnild a chnreh, each
contribriing five hundred dellars.  The coruer-stone
of the churel was laid September 8, 1830, by the Rev,
AL D, Gillelie, then of Philidelphia, The hasemnent
was completed in the winter of 183162 nnd dedieated
January 25, 1852, A eall had been extended to other
churches to organize & church at that time. The
ritteds wers bid sad the duy stermy, and e delegrics
framn Wilmington werethe ouly osucs present,  The
chureh was conatitnted with eight members—-Jonu-
than and Mary Stites, George and Jane Parvis, Gurorge
P.and Ruth H. Barker, Mrs. Llliza Walker and BMrs,
Beulah MeGonigal,
the right hand of fellowship, Mectings were held in
March and April following, and as tho result, eleven
peraons were baptized and became members of the
chinrel viz: Jehn Q. A0 Adams, Mary MelBride,
Lalizaheth Joues, Saral Blall, Graee Nowell, Samuel,
Eliza Anic amd Junie Nowell, Franeis A, (Clennelly,
Baymaud  amd  Elizubeth Wheatley.,  The opper
pavt of the house was dedicated in January 1853,
The pasinra of (e clureh, from the organization
10 the present,nre here given: John P, Walter,
resipned July 1, 1802 ; D A, Nichols, 1852 to latter
part of 18003 T L, e, 1854 ¢4 T, Hopking, three
wmantla, in 185 HL L Patpam, o 1861 Lo Beptrm-
her 20, 1863, Tu 866 the Tiew, I B Turioton wis
sentb by Buver and vieinity by the Awervican Baplise
Home Missiounry Sncicly, and resigned fu 1868, Tie
was siteceeded by the Rev, O, F. Flippo, who gerved
twa yeara, and resigned September 15, 1870, to be-
come a missionary for the State of Delaware, and o
giveattention to Wyoming Institute, which he was
then endeavoring Lo purchase for the Baptists, The
cliureh was without apnstor for some Lime, nnd hins
been servad ginee by the Rev, Chavles A, Harevls,
Folimnry 27, 1873, to Septenber 27, 18735 Lev, W)L,
Reeden, April 13, 1875, to October 1, 1876 ; Rev, B.GL
Parker, October 29, 1870, to 1881 ; Rev, ITeury Tratf,
one yenr; Rev, James Trickett; Nev. T, C. Miller,
November, 1885, to July, 1857, Rev. Mr. Williwns
aceepted  the pastorate in Heptember, 1887. The
chureh has a incmbership of about one hundred.

Carmmovnre Quoreir or pui Hony Cross!'—The
fourdlatinn-stone of the present church  was lnid by
1t. Rov, Thos Becker, first bishop of the diogese of
Wilmington, in November, 1870, —Rev, Edward Tay-
tor, pagtor, The building, of Gathic arehitecture, was
complered the following year b a cost of nearly
twenty tlhousand  dollues, and I8 b present com-
pletely oul of debt,

teve i, Tuylor was sticceede] by the Rev, Jolu
Leeos, in Auwnst, 1879 Lev. George Bradiond, in
1880 Rev. Wino Bermdnghaun, in 1881; amd Lev.

E P ropwaecl by Lhe Tay Josegd Gradt

The Rev, J. P. Walter extended .
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Joseph Grafin 1887, under the Rt. Rev. Bishop A. A.
Curtis, .13, sceond bishop of Wilmington.

To the parish of the Holy Uross are attached the
congregitions at Smyrna and Magnolia, and the mis-
siou-staliony of Salisbory, Westover, Princess Anue,
Berlin, Ocean City and Cape Charlex City, which
places are visited mouthly by the rector of the Dover
I'avish,  The whole congregation numbera about
three hundred members,

Merromss IN DovERr *~—The Methodist Episcopal
Church in Dover was organized on September 13,
1778. The first sermon preached in the town by a
Methodist minister was delivered by Tev, Frecharn
Cturrettson, from the sleps of the old nendemy that
stoad in thesonthers pock of Uie town, near where the
Farmers” Bauk is now situsted, on September 12,
1778, Concerning the labors of Garrettson here, Ste-
veny, In hig “1Tistory ol Amerfean Methodisim,” anys:
“ e beguu lis labors in Dover amid a storm of oppo-
sition in the futier pare of 1778, TTe had been in-
vitedd thither by n gentleman who had been profited
by liis mintstry elsewhere,® Tlurdly had he dismount-
ed from his horse when (lie mob gathered, crying out,
*Heis a Tory ; hang him, hang him > While others
shouted in his defonse,  Hundreds of clumorons
voices resounded around him, “ 71 wag ina fair way,”
says he, “to be torn in pieces.”

He was reacued, however, by some friendly gentle-
men, ong of whotn {Mr, Bmithers), taking him by Lthe
hand, amd leading Lim io the steps of the newleiy,
bade him preach, and deelared he wenld siand by
Line, The evangelist eried wdoud to the mltitede.
e was heard throngli most of the town. The crowd
wept, Quoe person gitting in o window a quarler of a
mile distint, was alarmad by the truth and afterward
converted.  More than twenty of his hearers were
awnlencd.  The ringleader of the mob repented and
betook himself to the reading of the Tible, and “nover
again persceuted the children of Gaod””  Garrettson
preached repeatedly in the town, furmed asociety
{Reptember 13, 1778}, and “the Lord was with them,
spreading the word and converling many souls.”
The preaching was at this time established at Mr,
Hilliard's, above Dover,

The first churel edilice owned by this suciety wins
buailt by Richard Dassett, Lan., alterwards Governor
of the Btale of Deluware, and who was iiimself o mem-
ber of the society. The house cost aboub two thou-
sand dollurs, one-lialf of which Mr. Bassell. gonerously
donated to the suciety. It was located at the north-
west corner of North and Queen Streets. The entire
lut fs 1w hsed 18 & cemetery,  The original troslees
of Lthe property—i.e., the lailding—were lichard Bing-
sebt, Denond Ilarvis, Juo, Willbank, Jno. Lowber
and Jozeph ITuper. The lot of ground on which the
chirels gbool was donnted {or that purpose by ¥in-
cent Looekerman to the following trustees, via, @ Jno,

2 anbrinted by Lev, Phaoous B Terey,

A Nuthwrdel Hwithers, Beig, futher of Hon,e NB, Sudthers, of Dela-
wHie,
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Pryer, Jr, Richard Lockwoodl, William Wirkley,
Major Tuybor amd James 1Tall, The deed for e
gronmd is lided e L ITRZ, The soviety was foeor-
poraled in 1709, und in honer af the fander of
Motbadism it was ealled Wesley Methodisl Episenpul
Church, In this first church edifico many of the
fathers of Methodism labored, among them Dr.
Thomas Coke, Freeborn Garrettson, “ Father Con-
nelly ' and others, and of the bishops, the following
visited Dover and preached there, viz.: Bishops
Asbury, Whatcoat, McKendrec, George aud limory,
Disliop Whatcoat died here in 1806, and his remains
were hnried under the altar of Lhe old church, and
when the building was afterwards torn down, o suit-
able mouument was crected over his gravo to murk
the spot.,

Thie old chinreh buildiug was torn down and the
new one erected on the preseut site on Slale Street
in 1850, most of the bricks from the old edifice being
used in building the new. The lecture-room of the
present building was dedicated ou Sunday, February
9, 1861, The serton on that seeasion was preschad
Ly Rev. Charles [0 Thompson, from Gen, 28: 10, 17,
Sinee it was fitat buill the hoose has been enlurged
twice, once in 1870 and ngain in 1884, The seating
gupaeily of the present awnlimee-room is about six
hundreed.  Present inembership (1827}, A5,

During the year 1887 the society undertool thework
of crecting n chupel in the western part of the Lown
for the convenivnee of the people living there, nnd
Tdwin M, Bievenson, Bsq,, & memhber of the chureh,
having donated for that purpone a lot of gronnd situ-
ated at the eorner of Guvernor’s Avennc and Mary
Street, the socicty built a neal chapel with a seating
capacity of about two hundral, and it was dedicated
on Suwmlny, October 2, 1837,

In adeition to the praperly already referred to, the
society owns & handsome parsonage property, con-
veniently located alongside of the ehurch, und it is
furnished with all the mudern appliances necessnry
for the comfort of the ministers’ family. Also the
church has recently bought and laid out o hundsome
cemetery on the north side of the town, cantnining
abont five avres.  The agpregate worth of real extutu
held by the church is abuut thirty-ons thousand
dollars,

The Sumlay-rchool connected with the church ia
one of the strongest and most prosperous in the State,
At first there was organized a unton school and it met
in what was at that time the town aeademy, ot the
gonthern terminug of State Stveet, This school was
erganized by [lan, Willard Hall {afterwanl hulge
1al1y, Dr, Martin W, Bates and o gentlenan numed
A. Hirong, about a, » 1826, The selionl was nn-
deneminutional, and after an existence of aboul four
years wag ubamloned, Messrs, Hall and Strong having
reioved from [over and Dr, Bales haviug given up
the enterprise.  During the year 1830, however, Mry,
Ann Clark Sipple eollected the children Logether and
organized the school in the Methodist Chureh, and
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Mrs. Bipple hersclf was elected the first superinten-
dent, and from that time on to the present the schiool
has continued to increase until it now numbers sixty
ollicers and teachers, with about six hundred scholars,
In 1856 Mrs. Elizubeth Dayis Burton, who was ussis-
tunt superintendent of the achool, snggested the
organizatiun of an inlunt departient in the sebuol,
and the wigauization was eilected with Mra. Ballie
Ann Ridgeley as superintendent, an oflice which she
retained until her death, in the apring of 1887.
During the history of the church the following
ministers have Dbeon stutioned here ss pastors in
charge, viz.:
Willlam Flendlnoing....,., 1753
Wolson Teed, .,
Banne] JImlley..
Ira Lllie........
Jucol el e
{ieurgn Muore ..
WMo Thomus. ...
Uhristdﬁlier BEEY e vveresnn
Dhwnuwa Fustar

Wiltiam Rydel.....useei,
Atveard White.. ...
Willinay Tuerbert,,
Julim Bmith...
Solomen Higging....
Junued Balsmn, .,
Tinie] Lastoiheliv ..
Willlwn Tinlioge,
Solumen Blarp.

craennaann THEZR
e  TRES
- 1824-1425
LG 2T
L LHEE
e LG
correnn JELR

“Walter Ponntgin,. Willinn Barnes,.. e 1850
John WH M., J. Duekiey..oeeeee. PP &5 i)
John WL e Jo 1L Belurland ... .. 1830

Willlum Hunter.
John Smith...
Jogeple WHILEY s
Thonii Jicksom.....,
Tratitel Gronch....,,..
Arehiluld Tesior....,
Willinm Hislop,.....,
T, Swith....... Fireess
Willine Huonloro ...
Bphralme Clivmbera.,..,.,.

Elipbnlet Teod....peee.. 1o 18170
Lovi Btarks,,, seesrennen e LAGE
Joshun Fumpliries. ... RERIEEYS
[gnntlng T, Cousper .. wvee. THAZ-43
Lues 1 Willinus coone THA45
Menry Button... ceane 1 RAG-47
Jumes Allen. ..
Guldsnith D Carrow........
Jolm I, Finzzand, ABG -5
Heary K. GHroy... e, 185854

L1806

Dichiard Liyon. ... Charleh JoATBIET s srsrrreen ) BED-DE
Menry Boalim. et 180G | Willinm C. Tolineon, 185718
Juali Aylelotto.. s e 1807 | Clinrles Cook...... PRPPRIURRR ki
Menry While.... reveenrnese 1808 | Uoho D Curtin.,.... vers 186162

. IR0
e 1810
T .1 1Y
181
THIH

Thouus J, Thompaon,, 803
Tenwy ClolelwsoT,. a0, LALRD-ET
Juoies LI Lighthourn. .., 1863-T0
Jomes I BLerrith e e JBT1=T2
George 1, Waksin RTH-Td

Thomas Wulker,
Julia Bluapley...
Tiors Melvin......
A Sutith...
Willlam Dishop .

dupies Ridgway ooinneenn 181 1 Johin M, Caldwell, e, d8T5-TT
Juaer Bidgway.. e BLE | WL Dy Divine e J3TE-BO
Jues Mooty v el LG | Johm IL Cubidweell e JHEL-E3

e 1BIT-18
wimisnnnnes TH]D

Thony K. Murtindula.,,.. 188486
Thonund B, TOITY...vnsen i LHBT

Charler Read,..
Thenune Miller

Wuarcoar Muerizodisr CHUreH (eol.).—The first
meeting-house erected by the colored pecple in Dover
was built in 1852, on the southwest corner of the old
church-yard and burying-groutd of tho Methodists.
The house was nsed until 1872, wheu a new church
building (and the present cne) was erccted westof iton
the same lot, and the old church was removed to the
gouth side of North Street, and fitted up for a parson-
age, and ig still used for thut purpose. The church
building was neatly frescoed sud painted in the
summer of 1887, Beforc 1832 there was no separate
organizatiun of the colored penple, but in that year
the soriety was organized, tuking the name of Blshop
Whateoat, who 1z buried in the yard on which their
church is erected,!

1 Rev. Riclioed Wikiteont, one of the bisliops of o Methotist Tpiseo-
il Clhioreh, wis bovw o Hoe porishe of Quinten, Engloul, Febroary 29,
175, 1o wie orduined In September, ITx4, by Juhn Wealey nod, ne-
eompanied by Dr. Colie, landed (o Americn the dd duy of Noveniber
fullowing.
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250 YEARS

brick chapel north of the church, which was dedicated in
memory of his daughter, Anna Kimber Massey. Soon the
Sabbath School superintendent reported "the greatest improve-
ment in our condition is owing to our removal from
gallery of the church to the beantiful chapel . . .

the
the most liberal donation ever made in or to cur community,

After the move to thc new church on State Street, an
anpual worship service was held in the Old Church. Also
special events took place in the ancient sanciuary, dear to
the hearts of the members. The last wedding there was the
wedding of Bess Muir and J. Caleb Boggs, now U. S, Senator
and former Goveruor of Delaware, cn December 26, 1931.
The church , decoraied with ivy and Chrisimas grecns was
lighted by candle light. The bride wore eggshell white velvet
and carricd white lilies. The service was performed by the
Reverend Francis Shunk Downes,

Having celebrated in 1964 the 250th anniversary of the

birth of the church, the Presbyterians are grateful for sturdy

forbears who lived up to the challenge of their times and
they stand ready to take their place in this century to serve
God in service to their fellowmen.

Wesley Methodist Church

Methodism, beginning in Eugland as a movement within
the Anglican Church, was first spread to thecolonies informal-
ly by laymen who migrated to the new world. Then, between
1769 aud 1774, John Wesley sent several lay preachers [rom
England to establish Methodism in the colonics. Among these,
Francis Asbury, who later became the first great Bishop of the
Methodist Episcopal Church in America, was themost famous.
These early Methodists only lightly touched the life of Kent
County with no lasting results.

But ou September 12, 1778, Frechorn Garrettson came to
Dover and preached on the steps of the Academy, which is
now the home of Mrs. Margucrite Fox, on South State Street.
He was subjected to the indignilies which most of the Metho-
dist preachers met, not only because ol their new doctrines,
but also because they were oftan considered 1o be Tory sym-
pathizers, but his siirring sermon won several converts. The
next day, Seplember 13, he met with these people and helped
them organize the Wesley Socielty of Dover. For the next
four years this Society met in the homes of ils merbers and
like many such societies throughout the colonies, it was con-
sidered a preaching placetoberegularly visited by the itinerant
Methodist preachers.

By 1782 a decision was reached to builld a Methodist
Church in Dover. Vineent Loockermau donated a pieccof land
for the nominal fee of five shillings. Richard Basseti, the most
prominent of the early converts who afterwards became Gover-
nor of Delaware and United States Senator, built the cliurch
at a cost of $2,000 and then donated half of the cost himself.
By the iime the church was incorporated on March 23, 1799
and officially took the name "Wesley Methodist F.piscopal
Church", there were more than 20 families belonging to its
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membership. This first building was located at the corner of
North and Qucen Streets where the old cemetery which sur-
rounded the church still remains.

One of the mostinfluential clergymen associated with Metho-
dism in Declaware was the Rev, Richard Whaicoat. The Gen-
eral Conference of 1784, which had organized this movement
as The Methodist Episcopal Church in America, had de-
signated Francis Asbury and Thomas Coke as Bishops, but
Coke had soon thereafter returned to England leaving Asbury
with entire weight of leadership. As the number of churches
grew rapidly the need wasfeltfor another Bishop, and Richard
Whatcoat was elected to this post in 1800. He labored dili-
genily at his task, having no time for marriage or family. In
April, 1806 he became very ill while preaching in Milford.
The last thirtcen weeks of his life were spent in the home of
his dear friend, Richard Bassett, on the Green in Dover where
he died. At his request, his body was buricd under the altar
of Wesley Church. Today a large monument stands on this
spot -@n the North Street side of the cemetery near where
the altar of the church nsed to he. The original marble slab
which marked his grave now hangs iu the hallway of Wesley
Church.

From the very beginning, Methedists in Dover seemed to
have a sensitive conscicnce on social issucs, Although the
colored people required
the Trustee's records show that on September 27,1800 Berroni
Harris, a Trustee, was ordered to free a slave girl, and again
in 1803 another mewber was directed by the Quarterly Con-
ference to free Lis slaves. Tt was not until after 1850, when
Wesley Church had rclocated, that a separate Negro con-
gregation was organized and selccted the name "Whateoat
for their church.

In the carly years, certain things were prohibited in Wes-
ley Church such as the chewing of tobacco or snuff during
the service and the indiscriminate sitting together of men and
women. The latter restriction was rclaxed in 1866, but the
others remained in force. This was also the year when the
ban apainst musical instruinents was lifled and two new har-
moniums were used for the first time.

Although 19th century Mecthodists were often criticized for
their shouting and emotional revival mectings, Wesley Church
grew rapidly and scon became one of the largest congre-
gations in Dover. Among the prominent citizens attracted to
the church were two members of the Ridgely family, Elizabeth
and Nicholas. The Ridgely Family Letters reveal that, in
spite of accusations made by other members of the family
that the Methodist precachers were "biggots" and often "appeal-
cd to unreasoning fear', Flizabceth was determined to be loyal
to her new faith, And Nicholas Ridgely requested ordination
and became a 'cirenit-riding” preacher who burned himself
out in the work, dying in 1849 at the age of 29.

The present site of Wesley Church on South State Street
was chosen in 1850 after much discussion. The cornerstone
was laid on September 23 and the bullding dedicated on

were to sit in the halcony,






MEMORAMNDIUM

-

TC: Jim Skeans, Bill Fitzhugh, & Ann Horsey
FROM: Bob Moyer
SUBJECT: Historic Marker

DATE: August 18, 2000

Tn 1122 _
Vincent Loockerman sold one-half acre of, this 2%-acre site for
LA

five shillings;{ﬁii?ﬁf)"for the purpose of bpilding a preaching
house or chapel thereon" on North Street a little west of Queen
Street to a Methodist Society organized in Dover in 1778 by
Freekborn Garrettson, an itinerant minister and circuit rider.
Richard Bassett, lawyer‘and later Governof'of Delaware, furnished

750 pounds to build the brick 40-foot square Wesley Chapel where

Bishop Francis Asbury preached the first sermon Octcber 2, 1784.

Mg certd i J

(NOTE: If room permits, it would be nice to add the
following: Two additions to the cemetery were made in 1823 and
1852, The present Wesley Church at its current site on State
Street a little south of Loockerman Street replaced Wesley Chapel
in 1850.)

i3



MEMORANDUM

TO: Ann Horsey
FROM: Bob Moyer
DATE: 8/23/00

SUBJECT: Additional info re Historic Marker

In addition to Bishop Richard Whatcoat, other ministers
interred in the old cemetery included the following: Rev. Ezekiel
Cooper, who died in 1862; Rev. William Fletcher Talbott, who died
in 1903; and Rev., John Wiltbank.*

Other prominent members of Wesley Church buried in the old
graveyard include: Cornelius P. Comegys, Governor of Delaware
from 1837 to 1841, who died in 1851; Gove Saulsbury, Governor of
Delaware from 1863 to 1871, who died in 1881; and Nathaniel B.
Smlthers, elected to the UnltedaStates Congress in 1863, who died
in 1896.

'TITR

*Extracted from Page 24 in the 1982 history of Wesley
Church. The 1listing of pastors who have served Wesley Church
beginning on Page 71 lists an E. Cooper, 1844-1845, but no record
of the other two, Talbott and Wiltbank.
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